

Unaudited Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

For the Three Months Ended December 31, 2013

Table of Contents

		Page
Noti	ice of No Auditor Review of Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements	4
Con	solidated Balance Sheets	5
Con	solidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income	6
Con	solidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity	7
Note	es to the Consolidated Financial Statements	9
1.	Description of Business	9
2.	Basis of Preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements	9
a)) Statement of compliance	9
b)) Basis of preparation	9
c)) Economic dependence	9
d)) New and amended accounting standards and interpretations	10
3.	Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions	
4.	Segment Information	
5.	Related Party Transactions	
6.	Property, Plant and Equipment	
7.	Mine Development	13
8.	Commitments and Contingent Liabilities	14
9.	Restoration Provision	14
10.	Earnings (loss) per Share	15
11.	Share Capital and Contributed Surplus	16
	Incentive Stock Options	16
12.	Inventories	17
13.	Receivables	
14.	Cash and Cash Equivalents	
15.	Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities	
16.	Capital Leases	
17.	Long-term Debt	19
18.	Financial Instruments, and Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies	20
	Classification of Financial Instruments	

Fair Value Hierarchical Levels	20
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies	21
Capital Management	22
Subsequent Events	23
Comparative Figures	23
	Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies Capital Management Subsequent Events

Notice of No Auditor Review of Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

Pursuant to National Instrument 51-102 - Continuous Disclosure Obligations, financial statements must be accompanied by a notice indicating that the financial statements have not been reviewed by an auditor.

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements of Almonty Industries Inc. ("**Almonty**" or the "**Company**") for the three month period ended December 31, 2013 have been prepared by the Company's management and are the responsibility of the Company's management. The Company's independent auditor has not performed a review of these financial statements.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

As at December 31 and September 30, 2013

(in 000's of Canadian dollars unless otherwise noted)

(III 000 s of Canadian donars diffess other wise noted)			
	Note	December 31, 2013	September 30, 2013
ASSETS			
Current Assets	14	207	1.002
Cash and cash equivalents	14	297	1,083
Trade receivables	13	7	870
VAT/HST receivable	13	2,036	1,471
Inventories	12	3,054	2,510
Other current assets		203	268
Total Current Assets		5,597	6,202
Non-Current Assets			
Property, plant and equipment	6	12,432	12,168
Mine development	7	19,336	16,513
Deferred tax assets		1,225	1,164
Restricted cash	14	249	237
Other non-current assets		380	392
Total Non-Current Assets		33,622	30,471
Total Assets		39,219	36,676
Liabilities			
Current Liabilities			
Trade and other payables	15	7,472	5,456
Capital leases	16	103	45
Current portion of long-term debt	17	2,343	2,225
Non-interest bearing obligation	15	650	617
Other accrued liabilities	15	327	2,159
Total Current Liabilities		10,895	10,502
Non-Current Liabilities			
Capital leases	16	-	63
Long-term debt	17	3,336	3,721
Deferred government grant		35	31
Restoration provision	9	536	502
Total Non-Current Liabilities		3,907	4,317
Total Liabilities		14,802	14,819
Shareholders' Equity			
Share capital	11	21,984	21,996
Contributed surplus	11	1,731	1,675
Accumulated other comprehensive income		1,589	115
Retained earnings (deficit)		(887)	(1,929)
Total Shareholders' Equity		24,417	21,857
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity		39,219	36,676

On behalf of the Board:

"Lewis Black"

"Mark Trachuk" Mark Trachuk, Director

Lewis Black, Chairman, President & CEO

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income

For the three months ended December 31

(in 000's of Canadian dollars unless otherwise noted)

	Note	2013	2012
Revenue		5,463	5,032
Cost of sales		2,496	2,520
Gross profit		2,967	2,512
Expenses			
Selling, general, and administrative		803	820
Realized foreign exchange (gain) loss		64	35
Other expense (income)		(157)	(3)
Non-cash compensation	11	56	15
Earnings (loss) before the undernoted items		2,201	1,645
Depreciation and amortization		1,065	1,399
Earnings before the undernoted items		1,136	246
Interest expense		94	17
Earnings before taxes		1,042	229
Income tax provision		-	-
Net income after tax		1,042	229
Other comprehensive income (loss)			
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit/loss for the period			
Foreign currency translation adjustment		1,474	823
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the period		2,516	1,052
Earnings (loss) per share			
Basic earnings (loss) per share	10	\$0.03	\$0.01
Fully diluted earnings (loss) per share	10	\$0.03	\$0.01

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity For the three month period ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 and the year ended September 30, 2012 (in 000's of Canadian dollars unless otherwise noted) Accumulated

	Share Capital					
	Shares	Amount	Contributed Surplus	Retained Earnings	Comprehensive Income (Loss)	Shareholders' Equity
Balance at September 30, 2013	37,044,389	21,996	1,675	(1,929)	115	21,857
Equity capital issued						
(repurchased and cancelled)	(15,000)	(12)	-	-	-	(12)
Contributed surplus (warrants						
and options issued)	-	-	56	-	-	56
Contributed surplus (warrants						
exercised)	-	-	-	-	-	-
Net income (loss) for the period	-	-	-	1,042	-	1,042
Foreign currency translation						
adjustment	-	-	-	-	1,474	1,474
Shares repurchased and canceled	-	-	-	-	-	-
Balance at December 31, 2013	37,029,389	21,984	1,731	(887)	1,589	24,417

	Share Ca	apital	Contributed	Retained Earnings	Accumulated Other Comprehensive	Shareholders'
	Shares	Amount	Surplus	(Deficit)	Income (Loss)	Equity
Balance at September 30, 2012	37,044,389	21,996	1,465	310	(2,122)	21,649
Equity capital issued	-	-	-	-	-	-
Contributed surplus (warrants and options issued)	-	-	15	-	-	15
Contributed surplus (warrants exercised)	-	-	-	-	-	-
Net income (loss) for the period	-	-	-	229	-	229
Foreign currency translation	-	-	-	-		
adjustment					823	823
Shares repurchased and canceled		-	-	-	-	-
Balance at December 31, 2012	37,044,389	21,996	1,480	539	(1,299)	22,716

	<u>Share Ca</u>	<u>ipital</u>	Contributed	Retained Earnings	Accumulated Other Comprehensive	Shareholders'
	Shares	Amount	Surplus	(Deficit)	Income (Loss)	Equity
Balance at December 31, 2012	37,044,389	21,996	1,480	539	(1,299)	22,716
Equity capital issued	-	-	-	-	-	-
Contributed surplus (warrants and options issued)	-	-	195	-	-	195
Contributed surplus (warrants exercised)	-	-	-	-	-	-
Net income (loss) for the period	-	-	-	(2,468)	-	(2,468)
Foreign currency translation adjustment	-	-	-	-	1,414	1,414
Transaction costs on share issue		-	-	-	-	
Balance at September 30, 2013	37,044,389	21,996	1,675	(1,929)	115	21,857

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the three months ended December 31

(in 000's of Canadian dollars unless otherwise noted)

	2013	2012
Cash flows from operating activities		
Net income (loss) for the period	1,042	229
Add (deduct) non-cash items:		
Depreciation & Amortization	1,065	1,399
Non-cash compensation expense	56	15
Non-cash revaluation of liabilities	(19)	14
Other non-cash charges	11	5
	2,155	1,662
Net change in non-cash working capital	450	50
Net cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities	2,605	1,712
Cash flows from investing activities		
Additions to property, plant and equipment	(2,859)	(2,512)
Net cash flows used in investing activities	(2,859)	(2,512)
Cash flows from financing activities		
Change in common stock	(12)	-
Issuance (repayment) of long-term debt	(566)	-
Capital leases	(10)	(15)
Net cash flows from financing activities	(588)	(15)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the period	(842)	(815)
Effect of foreign currency exchange on cash	56	21
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	1,083	1,052
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	297	258

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(in 000's of Canadian dollars unless otherwise noted)

1. Description of Business

The principal business of Almonty Industries Inc. ("Almonty" or "the Company") is the mining, processing and shipping of tungsten concentrate from the Los Santos Project, a tungsten mine located in western Spain and owned by the Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Daytal Resources Spain S.L. ("Daytal"). Daytal is wholly owned by the Company's wholly owned Almonty subsidiary, 7887523 Canada Inc. ("Almonty Sub"). Almonty Sub has incorporated another wholly owned subsidiary, Valtreixal Resources Spain ("VRS") to hold the option to acquire an interest in the Valtreixal tin/tungsten project located in western Spain. The principal business of VRS is the exploration of the Valtreixal Project.

2. Basis of Preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

a) Statement of compliance

The unaudited consolidated interim financial statements of Almonty for the three month periods ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standard 34, *Interim Financial Reporting*. These unaudited consolidated interim financial statements do not include all of the information required for full annual financial statements and should be read in conjunction with Almonty's annual audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2013.

These unaudited consolidated interim financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors of the Company on February 26th, 2014.

b) Basis of preparation

The unaudited consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and include the accounts of the 100% owned subsidiaries, Daytal, VRS and Almonty Sub.

The accounting policies and methods of computation adopted in the preparation of the financial statements of the subsidiaries are consistent with those adopted and disclosed in Note 3.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which Almonty obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases. All intragroup balances, transactions, unrealized gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends have been eliminated in full on consolidation.

c) Economic dependence

Almonty's wholly owned subsidiary, Daytal has a long-term supply agreement with one customer who participates in the global tungsten business. Currently over 95% of the output of Daytal's operations is sold to this customer. Almonty is economically dependent on the revenue received from this customer in order to be able to meet its current obligations. There is no guarantee that Almonty would be able to find an alternative customer or customers on market terms similar to its existing supply agreement should this current customer cease operations or become unable to pay Almonty under the current contract.

d) New and amended accounting standards and interpretations

New accounting standards and interpretations adopted October 1, 2013 The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, except for the following amendments to International Financial Reporting Standards ("**IFRS**") effective as of October 1, 2013:

Reference	Title	Date adopted by Almonty
IFRS 10	Consolidated Financial Statements	October 1, 2013
IFRS 11	Joint Arrangements	October 1, 2013
IFRS 12	Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities	October 1, 2013
IFRS 13	Fair Value Measurement	October 1, 2013
IAS 19	Employee Benefits (revised)	October 1, 2013
IFRIC 20	Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine	October 1, 2013

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements

IFRS 10 replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also addresses the issues raised in SIC-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special purpose entities. The changes introduced by IFRS 10 will require management to exercise significant judgment to determine which entities are controlled and therefore are required to be consolidated by a parent, compared with the requirements that were in IAS 27.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC-13 Jointly-controlled Entities — Nonmonetary Contributions by Venturers. IFRS 11 removes the option to account for jointly controlled entities (JCEs) using proportionate consolidation. Instead, JCEs that meet the definition of a joint venture must be accounted for using the equity method.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures that were previously in IAS 27 related to consolidated financial statements, as well as all of the disclosures that were previously included in IAS 31 and IAS 28. These disclosures relate to an entity's interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured entities.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements. IFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value under IFRS when fair value is required or permitted.

IAS 19 Employee Benefits (Revised)

The IASB has issued numerous amendments to IAS 19. These range from fundamental changes such as removing the corridor mechanism and the concept of expected returns on plan assets to simple clarifications and re-wording.

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

This interpretation applies to waste removal (stripping) costs incurred in surface mining activity during the production phase of the mine. The interpretation addresses the accounting for the benefit from the stripping activity.

The above listed amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after October 1, 2013 and there has been no effect on Almonty's financial position, performance or its disclosures.

New accounting standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The following standards, amendments to standards and interpretations have been identified as those which may impact the consolidated financial statements of Almonty. They have been issued but are not yet effective and are available for early adoption; however, they have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements.

Reference	Title	Application date for Almonty
IFRIC 21	Levies	October 1, 2014
IFRS 9	Financial Instruments	To be determined

IFRIC 21 Levies

IFRIC 21 Levies is an interpretation of IAS 37 *Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.* IAS 37 sets out criteria for the recognition of a liability, one of which is the requirement for the entity to have a present obligation as a result of a past event (known as an obligating event). The Interpretation clarifies that the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay a levy is the activity described in the relevant legislation that triggers the payment of the levy

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

IFRS 9, as issued, reflects the first phase of the IASB's work on the replacement of IAS 39 and applies to classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities as defined in IAS 39. The standard was initially effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, but Amendments to IFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures, issued in November 2013, removed the mandatory effective date from IFRS 9. The IASB stated that a new effective date will be decided upon when the entire IFRS 9 project is closer to completion. Entities may still chose to apply IFRS 9 immediately.

The adoption of these new or amended standards is not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements of Almonty.

3. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of Almonty's consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates and assumptions are continuously evaluated and are based on management's experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. However, actual outcomes can differ from these estimates.

As these unaudited interim consolidated financial statements do not contain all of the disclosure required under IFRS for audited financial statements, they should be read in conjunction with the notes to the Company's audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2013, where additional information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty considered by management is disclosed.

4. Segment Information

Management monitors the business of Almonty as a single reporting segment whose operations relate to the exploration and mining of tungsten in Spain. As Almonty operates as a single segment, the consolidated financial statements should be read as a whole for the results of this operating segment. Geographically 100% of the revenues earned from external customers are attributable to Spain and 100% of the Company's assets are located in Spain.

5. Related Party Transactions

There were no related party transactions that occurred during the three month periods ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

Compensation of key management personnel of Almonty during the three month period ended December 31

	2013	2012
Short-term cash compensation	95	95
Long-term Directors' incentive share-based compensation	-	15
Total compensation of key management personnel	95	110

6. Property, Plant and Equipment

	Property, Plant and Equipment
Cost at September 30, 2013	13,992
Additions	74
Translation adjustment	741
Cost at December 31, 2013	14,807
Accumulated amortization at September 30, 2013	(1,804)
Amortization charge	(444)
Translation adjustment	(127)
Accumulated amortization at December 31, 2013	(2.375)
Closing net book value	12,432

7. Mine Development

	Mine Restoration	Mine Development	Total
Cost at September 30, 2013	390	26,314	26,704
Additions	-	2,785	2,785
Reclassification on updated technical report	-	-	-
Translation adjustment	21	1,464	1,485
Cost at December 31, 2013	411	30,563	30,974
Accumulated amortization at September 30, 2013	(187)	(10,004)	(10,191)
Amortization charge	(24)	(883)	(907)
Translation adjustment	(11)	(529)	(540)
Accumulated amortization at December 31, 2013	(222)	(11,416)	(11,638)
Closing net book value	189	19,147	19,336

8. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Almonty, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Daytal, owns the Los Santos Project, near the town of Los Santos, Salamanca in western Spain. Daytal rents the land where the Los Santos Project is located from several individual property owners as well as the municipalities of Los Santos and Fuenterroble. The leases range from 10 to 25 years and have expiry dates between 2017 and 2032. On all leases greater than 10 years Daytal has the right to terminate the leases under certain circumstances without penalty. Annual lease commitments total $\in 181$ (C\$265) and are payable throughout the year on the anniversary dates of the individual leases.

The mining license for the Los Santos Project was granted in September 2002, for a period of 30 years and is extendable for 90 years. Daytal has to pay annual land taxes (approximately \notin 2 per year) to the government. This amount is related to the surface covered and not to the production of minerals. There are no other royalty payments. The Company files applications in the ordinary course of business to renew the permits associated with its mining license that it deems necessary and/or advisable for the continued operation of its business. Certain of the Company's permits to operate that are associated with the mining license are currently under application for renewal.

Daytal has a long-term contract with MOVITEX – Movimentos de Tierras Y Excavaciones, S.L.U. ("**MOVITEX**") under which MOVITEX carries out contract mining activities for Daytal on the Los Santos Project. Daytal currently does not have any mining capabilities of its own and relies on MOVITEX for all mining activity, including waste rock removal, pit development and delivery of ore to Daytal's crushing and processing plant. The current contract with MOVITEX runs for the life of the mine. Any disruption in the contract mining services provided by MOVITEX would have a negative impact on Daytal's short-term economic viability.

9. Restoration Provision

Almonty has recognized a restoration provision of \$536 with respect to Daytal's future obligation to restore and reclaim the mine once it has ceased to mine tungsten ore from the Los Santos Project. The restoration provision represents the present value of rehabilitation costs relating to the mine site which are expected to be incurred in 2019 after the mine ceases production. This provision has been created based on Almonty's internal estimates. Assumptions based on the current economic environment have been made, which management believes are a reasonable basis upon which to estimate the future liability. These estimates are reviewed regularly to take into account any material changes to the assumptions. Actual rehabilitation costs will ultimately depend upon future market prices for the necessary decommissioning works required which will reflect current market conditions at that time. The timing of the rehabilitation is likely to depend on when the mine ceases to produce at economically viable rates. This in turn will depend on Almonty's ability to extend the mine life years through additional exploration and also on the future price of WO₃ concentrate.

Banco Popular has posted a bank warranty of €180 (C\$264) on behalf of Daytal with the Region of Castilla y Leon, Trade and Industry Department as a form of deposit to cover the expected costs of restoring the mining property as required by Daytal's Environmental Impact Statement that forms a part of its mining and exploitation license on the Los Santos Project provision. The bank warranty cannot be cancelled unless such cancellation is approved by the government of Castilla y Leon

upon approval of the completion of the restoration work. The bank warranty is undrawn and carries a quarterly stand-by fee of approximately $\in 1$ per quarter.

10. Earnings (loss) per Share

Basic income (loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing net income (loss) for the period by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted income (loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing net income (loss) for the period by the weighted average number of fully diluted common shares outstanding during the period using the Treasury Method.

	Three months ended	
	December 31,	
Basic	2013	2012
Net income (loss) for the period attributable to Almonty shareholders	\$1,042	\$229
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding	37,036,389	37,044,389
Basic income (loss) per common share	\$0.03	\$0.01
Fully Diluted	2013	2012
Net income (loss) for the period attributable to Almonty shareholders	\$1,042	\$229
Weighted average number of fully diluted common shares	37,043,532	37,068,731
Fully diluted income (loss) per fully diluted common share	\$0.03	\$0.01

The weighted average number of common shares outstanding as at December 31, 2013 was 37,036,389 and the weighted average number of common shares outstanding as at September 30, 2013 was 37,044,389.

The weighted average number of fully diluted common shares outstanding is derived by adding the effect of all dilutive securities (calculated using the treasury method) to the weighted average number of common shares outstanding.

As at December 31, 2013 there were 1,900,000 options outstanding, an increase of 450,000 options outstanding when compared to the number that was outstanding as at December 31, 2012. Of the options outstanding at December 31, 2013, 7,143 were dilutive for the purposes of the 2013 calculation (2012 - 23,342).

As at December 31, 2013 there were 3,701,144 warrants outstanding, 656,650 fewer than were outstanding as at December 31, 2012 due to the expiry of warrants in September 2013. None of the warrants outstanding at December 31, 2013 were dilutive for the purposes of the 2013 calculation (2012 *nil*).

The impact of dilutive securities of 7,143, calculated using the Treasury Method, has been added to the weighted average number of common shares outstanding to arrive at fully diluted shares outstanding for the three months ended December 31, 2013.

The impact of dilutive securities of 24,342, calculated using the Treasury Method, has been added to the weighted average number of common shares outstanding to arrive at fully diluted shares outstanding for the three months ended December 31, 2012.

The Company, under its previously announced Normal Course Issuer Bid ("**NCIB**") repurchased and canceled 7,000 of its common shares during the month of January 2014 and has repurchased, but not yet canceled, 59,500 of its common shares during February 2014 up to the date of completion of these unaudited consolidated interim financial statements as at February 26, 2014. The common shares repurchase during February 2014 are expected to be canceled no later than March 10th, 2014.

• •

....

11. Share Capital and Contributed Surplus

	Number of Shares	Amount \$
Authorized		
Unlimited common shares, without par value		
Common shares issued	37,029,389	21,984
Total Share Capital	37,029,389	21,984
	Number of Warrants/Options	Amount \$
Contributed surplus		
Warrants/options outstanding as at September 30, 2013	5,451,144	1,675
Compensation options issued to employees during the period	150,000	56
Total Contributed Surplus as at December 31, 2013	5,601,144	1,731
Total Share Capital and Contributed Surplus	42,630,533	23,715

Incentive Stock Options

Almonty's stock option plan enables the Company to grant options to directors, officers, employees and consultants for up to 10% of the issued and outstanding common shares. Under the plan, the exercise price of an option may not be less than the closing market price during the trading day immediately preceding the date of the grant of the option, less any applicable discount allowed by the TSX Venture Exchange. The options can be granted for a maximum term of 10 years and vest at the discretion of the Board of Directors of Almonty. The plan was approved by Almonty's shareholders at its Annual and Special Meeting of Shareholders held on March 26, 2013.

On November 8, 2013, Almonty granted 150,000 incentive stock options that vested immediately to certain employees of its wholly-owned indirect subsidiary, Daytal. Each option is exercisable into one common share of Almonty at a price of \$0.80 per share for a period of ten years from the date of grant. The grant resulted in stock-based compensation expense, using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, of \$56 being recorded in the three month period ended December 31, 2013. The weighted average fair value of the stock options granted was \$0.38 per option.

The following assumptions were used for the Black-Scholes valuation of incentive stock options granted on November 8, 2013:

Risk-free interest rate	2.06%
Expected life of options	10 years
Annualized volatility	35%

Dividend rate	0%
Strike price	\$0.80

During the three months ended December 31, 2012 the Company recorded non-cash compensation expense of \$15 related to the vesting of a portion of the 500,000 options granted on September 26, 2011 that vest over a two year period. While the options vest in two instalments on the anniversary of the grant date, the Company has recorded the non-cash compensation expense for each tranche evenly over their respective vesting period. The notional number of options associated with the non-cash compensation expense totalled 31,250, leaving 93,750 options whose expense will be recognized over the remaining 9 months of the vesting period.

The following assumptions were used for the Black-Scholes valuation of incentive stock options granted on September 26, 2011:

Risk-free interest rate	2.15%
Expected life of options	10 years
Annualized volatility	35%
Dividend rate	0%
Strike price	\$1.00

As at December 31, 2013 the following options and warrants are outstanding:

	Number of Options/Warrants	Exercise Price	Expiry Date
Incentive stock options ^{1, 2}	1,250,000	\$1.00	26/09/2021
Incentive stock options ³	150,000	\$0.85	30/01/2022
Incentive stock options ³	50,000	\$1.02	19/06/2022
Incentive stock options ²	300,000	\$1.07	27/05/2023
Incentive stock options ³	150,000	\$0.80	08/11/2023
Heemskirk warrants	3,701,144	\$1.25	23/09/2014
Total Options /Warrants	5,601,144		

¹ 250,000 incentive stock options vested on the second anniversary of the grant date of September 26, 2011.

² Options issued to directors, officers and employees.

³Options issued to employees.

12. Inventories

	December 31, 2013	September 30, 2013
Stores and fuel	849	764
Ore and in-process ore	1,733	1,502
Finished goods – WO ₃ concentrate	472	244
Total inventories	3,054	2,510

The change in inventories is recognized as an expense through the cost of sales line on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income.

13. Receivables

As at December 31, 2013, there was \$7 (\$870 as at September 30, 2013) in trade receivables outstanding relating to the sale of tungsten concentrate under the Company's long-term supply agreement. As at the date hereof all outstanding receivables as of December 31, 2013 have been received.

As at December 31, 2013, Almonty recognized VAT recoverable in the amount of \$2,031 (\$1,438 as at September 30, 2013) and HST recoverable in the amount of \$5 (\$33 as at September 30, 2013) for a total VAT/HST receivable of \$2,036 (\$1,471 as at September 30, 2013).

14. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash at banks in deposit accounts that earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates totalled \$297 as at December 31, 2013 (\$1,083 as at September 30, 2013). Almonty only deposits cash surpluses with major banks of high quality credit standing.

As at December 31, 2013, Almonty had \$249 (\$237 as at September 30, 2013) in restricted cash on deposit with a financial institution in Spain. The deposit is for an 18 month term that expires in July 2014. The deposit earns a rate of interest of 2%. The deposit was required by the financial institution in order for Almonty to be able to post a bank guarantee in the amount of \$411. This amount represents Almonty's obligation to Iberdrola, S.A. for the build-out and completion of an electrical substation. The scheduled completion date for the substation is February 2014. Upon completion Almonty will be required to fund an additional \$162 in order to satisfy the full amount due. If the electrical substation has not been completed by July 2014 then Almonty may, at its discretion, cancel the bank guarantee and gain full access to the restricted cash and will then be required to fund the amount due to Iberdrola, S.A. when the substation has been completed

As at December 31, 2013, Almonty owed \$5,679 under its credit facilities (see note 17 – Long-term debt).

15. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

	December	September
	31, 2013	30, 2013
Trade and other payables	6,644	5,456
Sundry accruals	104	1,835
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes	176	234
Deferred revenue	828	
Accrued audit fees	47	90
Total Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities	7,799	7,615
Current portion of capital lease (Note 16)	103	45
Current portion of long-term debt (Note17)	2,343	2,225
Current portion of non-interest bearing trade payable	650	617
Total Current Liabilities	10,895	10,502

The Company received payment of \$828 for invoices submitted under its long-term supply agreement for 2 containers where shipment of the containers was delayed until early January 2014 due to logistical issues experienced during the last week of December 2013. The Company recorded deferred revenue in the amount of \$828 as at December 31, 2013 relating to the delayed shipment of the containers.

The net present value of the non-interest bearing obligation is \$650 was due for payment beginning September 1, 2012 with \$17 due and payable thereon followed by 14 equal monthly instalments of \$45. The non-interest bearing trade payable of \$650 (\$617 as at September 30, 2013) is classified as current (due within 12 months) of \$650 (\$617 as at September 30, 2013) and long-term (due after 1 year) of \$nil (\$nil as at September 30, 2013).

16. Capital Leases

	December 31, 2013		
	Minimum Lease Payment	Present Value of MLP	
Within one year	109	103	
After one year but not more than five years	-		
After more than five years	-	-	
Total Minimum Lease Payments	109	103	

The capital lease relate to certain equipment (vehicles). Ownership of the equipment reverts to Almonty at the end of the lease. The lease carries an implied interest rate of 8.50%.

	September	September 30, 2013		
	Minimum lease payment	Present value of MLP		
Within one year	50	45		
After one year but not more than five years	67	63		
After more than five years	-	-		
Total minimum lease payments	117	108		

17. Long-term Debt

During April 2013, the Company's wholly-owned subsidiary entered into agreements with 4 individual Spanish banks for a total of \notin 4,870 in debt facilities at interest rates ranging from 4.87% to 6.53%. The balance outstanding on the facilities as at December 31, 2013 was \notin 3,875 (CAD\$5,679). All of the debt facilities are fully amortizing over their respective 3-year terms that mature in April 2016. One facility totaling \notin 1,611 (CAD\$2,361) as at December 31, 2013 carries a guarantee by Almonty. In addition to the guarantee, under certain circumstances of default, the lender has a right to seize up to 20% of the net assets of Daytal in order to satisfy any amounts outstanding on the loan if the default is not cured. The remaining three facilities totaling \notin 2,264 (CAD\$3,318) as at December 31, 2013 are non-recourse. The monthly minimum principal and interest payments on the facilities, calculated at prevailing interest rates as of December 31, 2013, totals \notin 140 (CAD\$205) per month.

Facility	Security	Interest Rate	Current	Long-term	Total
1	Unsecured	Fixed 5.50%	\$238	\$342	\$580
2	Unsecured	Floating 5.64%	\$423	\$569	\$992
3	Guarantee/ Partial security	Floating 4.89%	\$971	\$1,390	\$2,361
4	Unsecured	Floating 6.53%	\$711	\$1,035	\$1,746
Total		-	\$2,343	\$3,336	\$5,679

	December 31,	September
	2013	30, 2013
Current portion of long-term debt – due within one year	2,343	2,225
Long-term portion – due after one year but not more than 5 years	3,336	3,721
Total long-term debt	5,679	5,946

18. Financial Instruments, and Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Classification of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments classified as fair value through profit or loss are carried at fair value on the consolidated balance sheet, and changes in fair values are recognized in net loss for the period.

The following table provides the allocation of financial instruments and their associated financial instrument classifications as at December 31, 2013:

Measurement basis	FVTPL* (Fair value)	Loans and receivables / Other financial liabilities (Amortized cost)	Total
Financial assets	,,,,	· · · · ·	
Cash and cash equivalents	297	-	297
Restricted cash	249	-	249
Trade Receivables	-	7	7
VAT / HST receivable	-	2,036	2,036
Total	546	2,043	2,589
Financial Liabilities			
Trade and other payables	-	7,472	7,472
Capital lease	-	103	103
Long-term debt	-	5,679	5,679
Other accrued liabilities	-	327	327
Non-interest bearing obligation	-	650	650
Total	-	14,231	14,231

*Financial instruments classified as fair value through profit and loss

Fair Value Hierarchical Levels

Fair value hierarchical levels are directly determined by the amount of subjectivity associated with the valuation inputs of these assets and liabilities, and are as follows:

- Level 1 Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date
- Level 2 Inputs (other than quoted prices included in Level 1) are either directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability through correlation with market data at the measurement date and for the duration of the instrument's anticipated life.

Level 3 - Inputs reflect management's best estimate of what market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Consideration is given to the risk inherent in the valuation technique and the risk inherent in the inputs to determining the estimate.

As of December 31, 2013, cash, restricted cash and cash equivalents of \$546, which is carried at fair value, was based on Level 1 inputs. Management has assessed the carrying values of financial assets and financial liabilities, other than Level 1 inputs, and believes the amortized cost of these assets and liabilities is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Almonty's principal financial instruments comprise cash deposits and finance leases.

The main purpose of these instruments is to provide cash flow funding for the operations of Almonty and its controlled subsidiary, Daytal. Almonty has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from operations.

The main risks arising from Almonty's financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, commodity price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Interest rate risk

Almonty's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to cash at banks and on hand with a floating interest rate and amounts payable to Almonty under its supplier finance program that is part of its long-term supply agreement with its major customer.

The Company currently has \$5,679 in long-term debt outstanding at varying levels of fixed and floating interest rates between 4.87% - 6.53%. The floating rate debt totaled \$5,099 and is based on a fixed spread over the 6-month Euribor rate. Any movement in the 6-month Euribor rate over remaining term of the long-term debt with have an impact on the amount of interest paid by the Company. For every 100 basis point (1.0%) movement in the Euribor rate will cause the amount the Company is required to pay in monthly interest to fluctuate +/- \$5. The Company may in the future become a borrower of an additional material amount of funds or repay its existing outstanding long-term debt at any time without penalty. The Company's primary operations are located in Spain and the current European financial crisis that is causing borrowing costs in several European countries to increase may have a negative impact on both the Company's future borrowing costs and its ability to obtain debt financing.

Foreign currency risk

Almonty's wholly-owned indirect subsidiary, Daytal, operates in Spain in Euros (\in). Its output is a commodity that is primarily denominated in United States dollars (USD\$) and Almonty's reporting currency is in Canadian dollars (CAD\$). As such, Almonty's consolidated balance sheet can be significantly be affected by movements between the three currencies (CAD\$, USD\$ and \in).

During the three months ended December 31, 2013 the value of the \in relative to the CAD\$ increased from $\in 1.00 = CAD$ \$1.3920 as at September 30, 2013, to $\in 1.00 = CAD$ \$1.4655 as at December 31, 2013, resulting in the Company recording a cumulative translation adjustment gain

of \$1,474 for the three months ended December 31, 2013. This amount is recorded as other comprehensive income (loss) on the Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income and accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) as a separate line item in Shareholders' Equity.

Commodity price risk

Almonty's policy is to maintain exposure to commodity price movements at its mining operations. The Company sells WO₃ concentrate that is denominated in US\$ per MTU. Every +/-US\$10.00 movement in the average price of 1 MTU of European ammonium para tungstate as quoted on the Metal Bulletin Exchange impacts the Company's revenue by +/- US\$8.00 per MTU of WO₃.

Credit risk

Almonty's maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other security, is the creditworthiness of its customer that is operating as counterparty to Almonty's supplier financing program. All invoices submitted to its major customer under its long-term supply agreement are subject to a supplier finance program. Almonty assigns all trade receivables that are subject to the supplier finance program to a third party bank and receives prepayment from the bank on the invoices assigned. The availability of this program rests solely on the ability of Almonty's customer to continually pay down the supplier financing facility as it comes due in order to ensure Almonty has access to draw on the facility when it ships WO₃ concentrate to its customer under the agreement. If Almonty were to no longer have access to the supplier financing program it would revert to normal trade terms with its customer.

The Company had \$2,036 in VAT/HST receivables outstanding as at December 31, 2013 (\$1,471 as at September 30, 2013) comprised of VAT of \$2,031 (\$1,438 as at September 30, 2012) due from the Spanish government and HST of \$5 (\$33 as at September 30, 2013) due from the Canadian government.

As at December 31, 2013, Almonty had submitted invoices totalling \$7 (\$870 as at September 30, 2013) under its supplier finance program where payment had not yet been received.

Liquidity risk

Almonty's objective is to use cash and cash equivalents, finance leases, inter-company participating loans and equity in order to maintain liquidity. Almonty's policy is to maximize liquidity in order to enable the continued development of the mine and operations of the plant and to enable the development of its projects. All financial liabilities with a contractual term of 12 months or less are classified as current.

19. Capital Management

The primary objective of Almonty's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. Almonty manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, Almonty may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. Almonty monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt, divided by equity plus net debt. Almonty's policy is

to maintain the gearing ratio between 5% and 40%. Almonty includes within net debt, interestbearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and short-term deposits and receivables from government tax authorities. Almonty is not exposed to any externally imposed capital requirements.

		December 31, 2013	September 30, 2013
Capital leases	Note 16	103	108
Long-term debt	Note 17	5,679	5,946
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	Note 15	7,799	7,614
Long-term non-interest bearing trade payables		650	617
Less cash, short-term deposits and receivables		(2,339)	(3,424)
Net debt		11,892	10,861
Shareholders' equity		24,417	21,857
Equity and net debt		36,309	32,718
Gearing ratio		32.8%	33.2%

20. Subsequent Events

On December 19, 2013, Almonty served notice to Sanchez y Lago, the mining contractor at the Los Santos Project, that it was terminating its agreement effective January 15, 2014. Almonty has entered into a new contract with MOVITEX – Movimentos de Tierras Y Excavaciones, S.L.U. for contract mining services at Los Santos effective January 15, 2014. Almonty estimates that it will owe Sanchez y Lago €40 for the demobilization of its equipment and up to €35 for a maintenance workshop owned by Sanchez y Lago that is located at the Los Santos mine site (total payment of up to €75 estimated to be \$109 based on the CAD/Euro exchange rate as of the date notice was given) as a termination fee under its existing contract. This amount became payable in January 2014.

On January 24, 2014 Almonty entered into two unsecure debt facilities with Banca de Empresas, a subsidiary of Banco Santander Group, totalling $\notin 2,500$ (CAD\$3,800 as at January 24, 2013). One facility totalling $\notin 1.000$ (CAD\$1,520) is fully drawn and matures on January 24, 2015 and carries an interest rate of 5.28%. The second facility totalling $\notin 1,500$ (CAD\$2,280) is an un-drawn line of credit that matures on February 20, 2017 and carries an interest rate of 6.067% up to April 24, 2014, after which interest will be charged on drawn funds at a rate of the 12-month Euribor rate plus 5.5%.

21. Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.